
 

 

 

 

City of Mt. Angel 
 

 

 

April 21, 2016 

 

 

Planning Commission Packet 



MT. ANGEL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
290 East Charles Street – Community Meeting Room 

Thursday, April 21, 2016, 7:00 p.m. 
 

Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 
 

 

7:00 p.m. REGULAR MEETING 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Flag Salute  
 
3. Roll Call 

4. Approval of July 16, 2015 Meeting Minutes 

5. Public Hearing  
a. Site Design Review 2016-01/ Variance 2016-01: Subject Property 555 N Main Street, Map 
Tax Lot 061W030CD/1700 

 
6. Other Business 

 
7. Adjournment  

  

 

  



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 
 

City of Mt. Angel 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
                                           

Planning Commission               7:00 PM                  July 16, 2015    
 

The City of Mt. Angel’s Planning Commission met Thursday, July 16, 2015 at the Community 
Meeting Room, 290 E. Charles Street, Mt. Angel, Oregon.  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   
The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Wall at 7:00 p.m. 
 

2. FLAG SALUTE: 

 Commissioner Wall led the salute to the flag.   

3. ROLL CALL: 

 PLANNING COMMISSION   STAFF  

 Gordon Bochsler, Commissioner    Eileen Stein, City Manager 
 Craig Emch, Commissioner    Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager 
 Greg Savage, Commissioner    Aneta Synan, City Planner (Mid-Willamette 

Jeff Wall, Commissioner & Vice Chair  Valley Council of Governments)         
         Steve Ward, City Engineer                
 ABSENT 

 Ryan Kleinschmit, Commissioner & Chair 
          

4. APPROVAL OF JUNE 18, 2015 MINUTES 

Commissioner Emch made a correction to page 6 of the June 18, 2015 minutes.  
 
Commissioner Emch moved to approve the Planning Commission meeting minutes for June 18, 
2015 as amended; Commissioner Savage seconded. 
 

Ayes: 4  Nays: 0 

 

The motion passed unanimously.  
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 
a. Partition 2015-01/ Conditional Use Permit, Site Design Review 2015-03/ Conditional 

Use Permit, Site Design Review 2015-04: Township 06S Range 1W Section 10AA, 

Tax Lots 100, 200, 300 

 

Commissioner Wall explained the public hearing process and asked if there were any conflicts of 
interest, biases, or ex parte contact. The Commissioners declared none. He also asked the 
audience if they were conscious of any possible conflicts of interest, biases, or ex parte contact 
by the Commissioners. None was provided by the audience. Commissioner Wall gave the 
opening statement required under state law prior to opening the hearing. He then opened the 
public hearing at 7:07 p.m. and requested the staff report be delivered.  

Item #4

Page 3 of 50



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 

 
City Planner Synan stated that the action by the Planning Commission may be appealed within 
12 days after notice, stating the Planning Commission’s decision, has been mailed. City Planner 
Synan explained how the applicants are proposing to partition the lots and create two parcels. 
 
She explained that the conditional use permit and site design review covers the development of 
individual retirement home units, club house, and maintenance building. She spoke of the 
dwelling units and club house to be built on the two parcels. She stated that the subject property 
is designated as Multi-Family Residential (RM), is located north of the Mt. Angel Towers, and is 
east of Single-Family zoned lots that primarily contain single-family dwellings that are single-
story.  
 
She stated the exhibits that were included in the packet for the record, which included exhibits 
A-G. She read comments from David Karr of AKS Engineering for the record. Mr. Karr’s letter 
stated he had spoken with the applicant, Alan Kraemer, about City Planner Synan’s questions 
that were addressed to him regarding the maintenance building. He stated that the maintenance 
building is for storage only, and that there will be no office or breakroom and that the structure 
will less than 20 feet in height. Mr. Karr also noted that the club house will not be available for 
the public to rent, but available for only residents of the retirement community. 
 
City Planner Synan spoke of emergency access to the development and said that the applicant 
has offered two options for providing emergency access. One option is to provide access via a 
road extending north from the development, until reaching E. Marquam Street.  The second 
option is to extend a road west to Taylor Street.  
 
She stated that there is also a multi-use path proposed for parcel 2 to connect with the Mt. Angel 
Towers. She also stated that the club house proposed for parcel 1 will be a little over 1,700 
square feet in size and that the maintenance building will be roughly the same size at 1,500 
square feet. She said that the application included drawings of the dwelling units the applicant is 
proposing, which include a mix of one and two bedroom units of various sizes ranging from 685 
square feet to 870 square feet. She further mentioned that there are four different cottage styles 
and that the applicant has noted that the retirement homes will be available for individuals age 55 
and older for 85% of the units in keeping with state and federal law.  
 
She also stated that the site analysis states that the site is not known to any natural hazard 
features that would prevent development of the site. She informed the Commission that the 
applicant has made the request to construct 5 of the dwellings units prior to final plat approval 
for the partition and for 24 months to comply with the conditions of the preliminary plat based 
upon the fact that the applicant will need to obtain approval from the City Engineer for public 
improvement and have time to then implement those improvements. Such improvements will 
need to be completed before the final plat can be reviewed and recorded at the Marion County. 
The 5 building permits that the applicant has requested would be issued before that final plat is 
approved as well as the building permit for the club house. However, those structures would not 
be given an occupancy permit until after the final plat has been approved and utilities have been 
installed to meet City standards as indicated in the proposed conditions. The applicant has also 
asked for 5 years to implement the conditional use permit, which City Planner Synan stated is 

Item #4

Page 4 of 50



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 
 

reasonable considering that it is being requested concurrently with the partition and it will take at 
least 24 months to fulfill the partition requirements, record the final plat, and finally complete the 
construction proposed in the applicant’s development plan. 
 
City Planner Synan commented on the criteria for the partition, conditional use permit, and site 
design review, which were included in the staff report.  She stated that based upon the 
information that has been received, the development does comply with the criteria in the Code. 
There was discussion on the number of dwelling units to be built on the proposed parcels.   
 
Commissioner Wall asked to hear from the applicant. David Karr of AKS Engineer and 
representing Mr. Kraemer, introduced himself and thanked staff for all the time and work they 
had put in to get the application to the point it is at currently. He stated that at this point the 
applicant is in agreement with all of the conditions that have been proposed in the staff report 
and would like to reserve any further comment until after public testimony.  
 
Commissioner Wall asked for public testimony in favor of the project proposal. There was none. 
He then asked for any neutral comments or questions on the project proposal.  David Sylvia 
stated his name and address for the record and stated that there was a missed opportunity to 
improve the road when development took place on Alder Street. He is concerned with the 
condition of Alder Street and the ability for it to handle additional traffic generated from the 
proposed project as the road is not wide enough in his opinion or have adequate sidewalks. He 
spoke of access taken from Linden Street and of his concern that it may not be adequate to 
support traffic accessing the proposed development. He also expressed concern over the impact 
60 plus units could have on water pressure, as it is already marginal at best. In addition, he 
wanted to know how all of the construction equipment will make it onto the parcels during the 
construction phase. Lastly, he was concerned whether there was adequate parking for the 
proposed developed. He started that he is not against the project, that it is probably good for Mt. 
Angel, but he hopes it is well thought out and does not inconvenience the people that reside in 
the area.  
 
Commissioner Emch replied that the applicant may be able to address some of the concerns 
expressed by Mr. Sylvia more thoroughly. Commissioner Emch stated that there is no 
disagreement on the condition of Alder Street, but there are a few holes in the Development 
Code and that a workshop was held prior to the public hearing to address those holes in the 
Code. He explained that the Commission is actively working to fix those inadequacies made 
apparent by that particular development previously referenced by Mr. Sylvia. As he understands 
from his review of the drawings for the proposed project, there will major upgrades made to the 
waterlines and that the overall the project will become a benefit to the water service and fire 
suppression capabilities in that area.   
 
Commissioner Wall asked if there were any other comments or questions on the project 
proposal. Jim Kosel asked if the units would be rentals. The applicant, Mr. Kraemer replied that 
the units would be rentals. Jim Kosel also asked if the club house, detention pond, and 
maintenance building would be something that Mr. Kraemer would maintain. Mr. Karr stated 
that could be addressed by CC&Rs.  

Item #4

Page 5 of 50



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 

Commissioner Wall asked if there were any other comments or questions on the project 
proposal. There was none. Commissioner Wall asked if there were any present in opposition to 
the proposed development. There was none present.  
 
Commissioner Wall closed the public testimony portion of the hearing at 7:36 p.m.  
 
City Planner Synan provided staffs’ recommendation, stating, based upon the findings 1-40 in 
the PAR 2015-01, CUP/SDR 2015-03, CUP/SDR 2015-04 staff report, staff is recommending 
approval of Partition 2015-01 subject to the following conditions:  

 
1. The terms and conditions contained in Section III(A) and Section III(B) of this report 
are incorporated as conditions of approval to PAR 2015-01i.  
 
2. Building permits may be granted by the City for development of five retirement 
dwelling units and the Clubhouse prior to PAR 2015-01 Final Plat approval provided the 
plans demonstrate compliance with off-street parking standards and the Planning 
Commission approved site plans, however occupancy permits shall not be granted for any 
structure until after the conditions of PAR 2015-01 are met and the Final Plat has been 
approved by the city and recorded.  
 
3. Prior to final approval of construction drawings and/or city approval of the Final Plat, 
the applicant shall submit a title report which includes a list of all existing easements, 
restrictions, and other encumbrances on the property in question for review by the City. 
Copies of the referenced easements, restrictive covenants and other instruments affecting 
the property shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review.  
 
4. After substantial completion of any public infrastructure improvements required as a 
condition of approval or by the MADC or the PWDS, the developer may request 
approval to record the final plat before final completion of all required improvements 
with city approval of a security guarantee that is satisfactory to the City.  
 
5. The front line distance for Parcel 2 shall be noted on the final plat by bearing and 
chord distance.  
 
6. The applicant shall prepare a final plat, and survey and monument all boundaries as 
required by MASO 2.2(a)(1), (2), (4), (5), (6) and 2.2(b), and ORS Chapters 92 and 209. 
The plat shall substantially conform to the approved preliminary plan and shall comply 
with MASO 6.3 and the following conditions:  
 

a. An Oregon licensed land surveyor shall survey and monument the parcels or 
lots;  
 
b. An Oregon licensed land surveyor in accordance with ORS Chapter 92 and 
Marion County Surveyor Plat Standards shall prepare a partition plat. The 

Item #4

Page 6 of 50



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 
 

surveyor shall submit the original plat and a true reproducible of the plat, and the 
filing fee to the County Surveyor.  
 
c. All taxes, interest and penalties shall be paid in the manner prescribed for 
subdivision plats pursuant to ORS 92.095; and  
 
d. Any other conditions required by a specific section of the Mt Angel 
Subdivision Ordinance or the Mt. Angel Development Regulations or by State 
law.  

 
She then stated, based upon findings 41-48 contained in the PAR 2015-01, CUP/SDR 2015-03, 
CUP/SDR 2015-04 staff report, CUP 2015-03 and CUP 2015-04 staff is recommending approval 
subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. Implementation of the Grandview development, as approved, shall be complete within 
five years of the date of the Planning Commission decision.  

 
2. Building permits for development of five retirement units and the club house that are 
compatible with the approved site plans may be issued by the City prior to PAR 2015-01 
Final Plat approval but occupancy permits shall not be granted the Final Plat for PAR 
2015-01 has been approved and recorded.  
 
3. Issuance of a building permit for the Maintenance Building on Parcel 2 will be subject 
to planning review for conformance with all dimensional standards and off-street 
standards contained in the MADC.  
 
4. Approval of CUP 2015-03 and CUP 2015-04 shall be conditioned upon approval of the 
PAR 2015-01 Preliminary Plan, satisfaction of all PAR 2015-01 conditions of approval, 
and city approval and recording of the PAR 2015-01 Final Plat unless otherwise noted in 
the decision.  
 
5. Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions to prevent different and separate ownership, 
or to change the use, of Parcels 1 and 2 shall be prepared for city approval and recorded 
with each parcel unless, until such time as a separate water service and separate water 
meter is installed to provide independent service to each legal lot.  

 
Lastly, she stated that based upon findings 49-55 contained in the PAR 2015-01, CUP/SDR 
2015-03, CUP/SDR 2015-04 staff report, CUP 2015-03 and CUP 2015-04 staff is recommending 
approval subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. Approval of SDR 2015-03 and SDR 2015-04 is conditioned upon approval and 
recording of the PAR 2015-01 Final Plat and satisfaction of all PAR 2015-01 conditions 
of approval. The applicant shall be provided 5 years from the date of Planning 
Commission approval to implement the plans approved under SDR 2015-03 and SDR 
2015-04.  

Item #4

Page 7 of 50



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 

 
2. All new developments, electric, telephone, and other utility service shall be located 
underground.  
 
3. Except as noted in the Planning Commission Decision, all development on Parcel 1 
and Parcel 2 of Grandview shall comply with the Mt. Angel Development Code and 
Public Works Standards and be consistent with the terms and conditions described in 
Section III A-B of the Mt. Angel Grandview Staff Report.  

 
Commissioner Wall called the applicant’s representative, Mr. Karr, to the stand as he had 
previously requested. Mr. Karr stated that he has nothing further to add. City Planner Synan 
commented on the applicant’s ability to meet the parking requirements. Mr. Karr stated that his 
intention is to speak with Mr. Sylvia and show where the designated parking will be located for 
the proposed development. 
 
Commissioner Emch complimented the applicant and AKS Engineering on the thoroughness of 
the documents that have been presented and added that it reflects the thoughtfulness that was put 
into preparing for this project and possible impacts to the City. He then asked about 
infrastructure improvements related to the proposed project that would impact infrastructure in 
the development’s vicinity. Mr. Karr spoke of upsizing water lines, looping the system, and the 
increase in flow to create better pressure and provide for enhanced fire suppression capability. 
There was discussion on water flow and increase in line capacity. 
 
Commissioner Emch spoke of the emergency access routes and asked if there is any indication 
on which is more feasible. City Planner Synan stated that they are both feasible from a fiscal 
standpoint, but the ability to obtain easements for access may determine, where access is taken 
from. 
 
Commissioner Savage asked about the project’s relationship with the Towers. He also stated that 
he had a concern about traffic and wanted to know of the ability to establish a second street for 
residents to access the proposed development. He also asked about how stormwater would 
connect to the City’s existing system and how the Planned Unit Development (PUD) would be 
maintained. Finally, he asked about the ability to provide sufficient parking. 
 
City Planner Synan spoke about driveways and the parking area next to the club house adding to 
the total number of parking spaces available and how that would assist the proposed 
development in meeting the parking standard in the Code. She also spoke of the extension of 
Linden Street and the obstacles in creating an additional street to the proposed development. 
There was further discussion on creating an additional street. City Planner Synan stated that there 
is not a strong justification to require offsite improvements as suggested by Commissioner 
Savage. Steve Ward, the City Engineer, added that there are not that many trips generated by this 
type of development. 
 
Mr. Karr stated that in speaking with Mr. Kraemer, they are planning to limit construction traffic 
by allowing it to access the development site from E. Marquam St., which is north of the site, 
instead of from Linden Street. Mr. Karr also spoke to the question of stormwater stating that 

Item #4

Page 8 of 50



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 
 

stormwater runs to the north and east. The location of the pond on the plans is at the lowest point 
of the property and that there is a storm line that runs from the pond up towards E. Marquam 
Street so stormwater will not be diverted to the west, to any of the existing storm systems in the 
area of Alder Street.  
 
Commission Emch asked if there has been any conversation with the Towers about stubbing the 
waterline out towards the Towers’ property and tapping into their waterline as the Towers have 
some needs as far as fire flow and it would be a great benefit to that area. Mr. Karr stated that 
they have not had that conversation at this time, but that such a conversation could certainly take 
place. He stated that they do plan to stub a 10 inch waterline to the southern property line. 
Commissioner Emch stated that it would be a great interest to the Mt. Angel Fire District to 
improve the fire flow in that area. Maureen Ernst stated that the Towers has a meeting scheduled 
next week with the developers.  
 
Commissioner Savage asked about the potential for condominiums to be built. Mr. Karr replied 
that there will be deed restrictions in place to prevent that from occurring and that the two lots 
will be maintained together under single ownership and spoke about deed restrictions remaining 
with the property even if it were to be sold off.  
 
City Planner Synan explained that a condition of approval provided by the City Manager under 
section 3a and 3b of the staff report is that the development shall not be converted to 
condominiums in the future and that the condition can be tied into the decision by referencing 
those sections. There was discussion on the design of the dwellings. There was further discussion 
on fire flows. Mr. Karr stated that they have performed a preliminary analysis on the fire flows 
as part of the application and where they are looping the waterline they are meeting the fire 
flows.  
 
There was conversation on parking along Linden Street and how a public street does not qualify 
as off-street parking, which is the reason it was not counted towards meeting the parking 
standard for the proposed development. There was discussion on the federal act, Housing for 
Older Persons Act (HOPA), which allows for limiting the community to individuals 55 and older 
to a certain extent.  
 
There was discussion on conditional use permits and the requirement to come back before the 
Planning Commission if any change of use were to be proposed. There was also discussion on 
how the 55 and older requirement will be enforced. City Planner Synan suggested tying 
retirement community to the deed restriction. Commissioner Savage asked about the ability to 
change the maintenance building into a different type of structure. City Planner Synan spoke of 
what was indicated in the submitted application and the ability to check compliance when the 
building permit is applied for. There was discussion on utility metering. 
 
Commissioner Emch stated in the interest of moving forward, he believes that this is a solid 
application and that the conditions provided by the City Planner and City Engineer are good, and 
that the project has been thoroughly evaluated. He also stated that it is important to note that in 
the limited amount of time that the Commission has had to review the vast amount of 
information provided, the Commission is placing a substantial amount of trust in the conditions 

Item #4

Page 9 of 50



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 

as they now lie and that it is frankly impossible for anyone on the Commission to fully 
understand how each condition and will impact things going forward. Given the quality of the 
application and the time that has been exerted on this the project thus far by City staff and the 
developer, there are a couple clear paths here, one being approval and the other being to 
postpone to review further.  
 
Commissioner Emch said one thing that he would like to touch upon is the units themselves and 
would like to know more about the design process, how the layouts were decided upon, and what 
attention the City has given to the units themselves and their ability to comply with the standards 
for the RM zone. City Planner Synan stated that the height and style seemed to be compatible 
with existing development to the west and the development standards for the RM zone. 
Commissioner Emch asked Mr. Karr how close the unit designs included in the report are to 
what will actually end up being constructed. Mr. Karr replied that it will end up being very close 
to what was included in the application and it is a design that the designer has used before and 
has had success with, providing a cottage feel and being small enough to maintain and allow 
seniors to retain their independence.  

 
Commissioner Emch moved to approve Partition 2015-01 based on the findings in the staff 
report, subject to the conditions within the staff report; Commissioner Bochsler seconded.  

 

Ayes: 4  Nays: 0 

 

The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Savage moved to approve Conditional Use Permit 2015-03 and Conditional Use 
Permit 2015-04 and amend section 5 of the findings to recite the following: Covenants, 
Conditions, and Restrictions to prevent different and separate ownership, or to change the use, of 
Parcels 1 and 2 shall be prepared for city approval and recorded with each parcel unless, until 
such time as a separate water service and separate water meter is installed to provide independent 
service to each legal lot; Commissioner Emch seconded.  

 
Ayes: 4  Nays: 0 

 

The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Emch moved to approved to Site Design Review 2015-03 and Site Design 
Review 2015-04 based on the findings in the staff report, subject to the conditions within the 
staff report; Commissioner Bochsler seconded.   

 

Ayes: 4  Nays: 0 

 

The motion passed unanimously. 
 
6. OTHER BUSINESS 

a. Wachter Annexation Update 

 

Item #4

Page 10 of 50



Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall 

at least one business day in advance at 503-845-9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may 

be available with sufficient prior notice of need.  

 
 

City Manager Stein stated that last Monday night the City Council held a public hearing on an 
annexation request for the Watcher property. The City Council, by a 6 to 1 vote, approved a 
resolution calling for a measure election on the annexation of the 20 acres in city limits. The next 
step is to put the measure on the November ballot. 
 

b. Marijuana Legislation Update 

 
City Manager Stein commented that the legislature has adjourned and what the legislature has 
done in regards to Measure 91, should not affect the ordinance adopted by the City Council 
establishing time, place, and manner restrictions for marijuana facilities. She stated that under the 
City’s current ordinance, the only possible location for a marijuana facility to locate in town is 
north of Industrial Drive, which is a completely undeveloped parcel.  She commented that the 
method of taxing marijuana has been modified. Under measure 91 the production of marijuana 
was taxed and now the sales of marijuana will be taxed. There is a 17% state tax and 3% local 
tax that is allowed under the new law and during the first year revenue is shared with all cities. 
During the second year, tax revenue is shared only if there is a licensed dispensary located in the 
community. As it currently lies, Mt. Angel will receive tax revenue is 2016, but not in 2017. The 
only other significant change to Measure 91is if 55% or more of the voters in a particular county 
voted no on Measure 91 than a city council has the authority to outright ban the sale of 
recreational marijuana. If 45-55% voted no in a county, than a city council could vote to refer a 
prohibition measure to its voters. Previously, under Measure 91, the only way you could prohibit 
recreational marijuana in a city was by an initiative petition.  
 

c. Planning Commission Training Update 

 
City Manager Stein informed the Commission that there is a planning training coming up such as 
the one that recently was held in Grants Pass. She will get more information to the 
Commissioners if they are interested in attending such a training.  
 
City Planner Synan spoke of the two maps included in the Planning Commission packet and case 
law regarding the submission of exhibits for the record. 
 
7. ADJOURN: 

Commissioner Wall adjourned the regular meeting at 8:52 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by:   ___________________________________ 

Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager 

 

      Attested by:    ___________________________________ 

     Ryan Kleinschmit, Planning Commission Chair 

 

Item #4

Page 11 of 50



Mt. Angel:  Site Design Review /Variance–555 N. Main Street, Tri-Plex 
  1 

 STAFF REPORT 
 
 SITE DESIGN REVIEW AND VARIANCE 

FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
 555 N Main Street  
 
 SDR 16-1/VAR16-1 
 

Staff Report:  
Planning Commission Hearing Date:  April 21, 2016 

 
 
APPLICANT: Multi-Tech Engineering 
 

OWNER:  Lazar and Elena Kaluqin 

 

REQUEST: Applicant is proposing a triplex in the Residential Commercial (RC) Zone.  
The property is also in the Bavarian Theme District, Infill Overlay Zone.  
The applicant is requesting a Major Variance to reduce the required 
setback of 20 foot to 5 foot along the southern property line. 

 
SUBJECT 555 N Main Street.   
PROPERTY  
 
TAX LOT:  061W030CD/1700 
 

APPLICABLE   
CRITERIA: City of Mt. Angel Development Regulations - Sections 4, 6.3, 14, 15 and 

17 
 

EXHIBITS:  Exhibit A:  Applicant’s submittal 
   Exhibit B:  Assessor map 
   Exhibit C:  City Engineer (Steve Ward P.E., Westech Engineering) Comments 
   Exhibit D: Written testimony from Mt. Angel resident Becki Thomas 
    
I. BACKGROUND 
 
General The subject property is located on the east side of Main Street.  The 0.28-

acre site for the proposed development is located approximately 800 feet 
north of the intersection of E. Marquam Street and N. Main Street. 

 
On-site The site is currently vacant. 
 
Surrounding area  The zoning of the land bordering the subject property is as follows: 
 

 North:  Residential Commercial 

Item #5a

Page 12 of 50



Mt. Angel:  Site Design Review /Variance–555 N. Main Street, Tri-Plex 
  2 

 South:  Residential Commercial 
 East:  Public 

 
II. REVIEW PROCEDURE 
 
The Planning Commission has authority to render a final decision with respect to the application 
after conducting a public hearing on the matter. 

 
III. APPEAL 
 
The Planning Commission’s decision may be appealed to the City Council in accordance with 
Development Code Section 2.10. 

 
IV. REVIEW CRITERIA AND FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
Section 6.3: Residential Commercial Zone 
 
Section 6.3 (b) 2 Use:  The applicant is proposing a triplex on the site.   
 

Finding: Triplex is a permitted use in the RC zone under 6.3(b) (2).   
 
Section 6.3(d) 1:  Minimum Lot Area: 10,500 minimum lot area for multi-family development 
 

Finding: The lot is .28 acres or 12,196 square feet.  The standard is met. 
 
Section 6.3. (d) 2(A-C): Minimum Yard Setbacks. 

Front Yard 15 feet 
Side Yard  20 Feet 
Rear Yard:  10 Feet 
 
Finding: The development has a 20 foot setback in the front yard, 20 foot side yard in 
the north yard, and a 10 foot side yard in the rear.  These setbacks are met. 
The south yard is shown as 5 feet, and is not meeting the code. 

 
Section 6.3 (d) 3: Landscaped Yards: All required yards adjacent to a street shall be landscaped. 
 
 Finding: The yard adjacent Main Street is landscaped 
 
Section 6.3 (d) 4: Lot Width: Width at Front Line: 20 Feet, Width at Building Line: 50 Feet 
  

Finding: The entire lot is 73 feet, this standard is met. 
 
A. Variance request 

 
The applicant has submitted a variance request.  Specifically, the request is to allow for a 5 foot 
setback along the southern property line where a 20 foot setback is required. 

Item #5a

Page 13 of 50



Mt. Angel:  Site Design Review /Variance–555 N. Main Street, Tri-Plex 
  3 

 
According to Development Code Section 4.4, the Planning Commission may permit and 
authorize a variance from a requirement of the Development Code provided each of the 
following criteria are met: 
 

(a) The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the 

hardship.  

 

Findings: In order to develop the lot as the applicant proposed this is the minimum variance 
practical and necessary to develop this property as a triplex and meet the intent and standards of 
the Code.  The narrow dimensions of this lot (73 feet) create constraints on the build out of the 
lot.  The depth of the lot allows for setbacks along the north, east, and west property lines to meet 
the Code.   
 

(b) Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property 

which do not apply generally to other properties in the same zone or vicinity; and 

result from lot size or shape, legally existing prior to the date of this Ordinance, 

topography, or other circumstances that substantially exist. 

 

Findings: The lot is an odd shape (long and narrow), making it difficult to locate any structure 
on the site and meet the setback requirements.  The applicant is requesting a variance to allow a 
5-foot setback along the south property line where 20 feet is required.  
 
Due to the shape of the lot and the location of the driveway, the triplex cannot meet all the 
setback requirements.  This is the minimum request to meet the intent of the Code.   
 

(c) The authorization of such variance will not be materially detrimental to the public 

welfare or injurious to property in the vicinity or district in which the property is 

located or otherwise conflict with the objectives of any City plan or policy.  

 

Findings:  The proposal is reducing the side setback on the southern portion of the property from 
20 feet to 5 feet.  The property to the south is currently developed.  The applicant is proposing to 
build a 6 foot sight obscuring fence, and provide landscaping.   
 

(d) Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

property right of the petitioner that is possessed by the owners of other properties in 

the same vicinity or zone.  

 

Findings: The granting of the variance is needed for proper development of the site. As stated 
above, due to the narrow shape of this lot, the owner faced challenges regardless of the density to 
build at.  Therefore, a variance to the setback has been identified as appropriate. 

(e) Approval of the application does not conflict with policies and objectives of the 

Comprehensive Plan.  

 

Item #5a

Page 14 of 50



Mt. Angel:  Site Design Review /Variance–555 N. Main Street, Tri-Plex 
  4 

Findings: The Mt. Angel Development Code, implements the Comprehensive Plan land use 
goals, and governs development of property within the city limits.  The development will be 
reviewed for compliance with city standards and requirements contained in the Code.  The 
proposed triplex meets all applicable provisions of the Development Code.  The applicant is 
requesting variance to the 20-foot side yard setback along the south property line.   
The lot can be adequately served with water, sanitary sewer and storm drainage facilities. The 
triplex can also be served with other utilities appropriate to the nature of the development. 
Additional reviews occur at the time of building permits to assure compliance with the 
development code.   
 
The subject property is designated Commercial on the Comprehensive Plan which is consistent 
with the zone designated of the property, RC (Residential Commercial Zone).  The purpose of 
the RC zone and Comp. Plan designation is to encourage higher density residential and 
commercial uses on the site.  The applicant’s proposal is for triplex development.  This higher 
density is consistent with the housing needs and density within the Comp. Plan designation and 
the purpose of the zoning density of the RC zone.  

(f) The circumstances or conditions applicable to the specific property involved or to 

the intended use or development of the specific property does not require the 

property to be rezoned.  

 

Findings: The proposed triplex is a permitted use in the RC zone under Section 6.3(b) (2).  The 
setbacks imposed on this site can be relieved through the variance process. Therefore, the 
requested variance does not require the property to be rezoned. 
 

(g) That the special conditions and circumstances on which the application is based do 

not result from the negligent or knowing violation of this Ordinance by the applicant.  
 

Findings: The granting of the variance will not affect the public health, safety, and welfare, or 
the comfort and convenience of owners in the vicinity of the proposed development.  The 
proposed triplex is one-story in height, which is similar or lower in height then adjacent 
structures.  The variance will not be in violation of this or any Ordinance.   

(h) Strict adherence to the requirement or standard is unnecessary because the 

proposed variance will reasonably satisfy both of the following objectives:  

(1) Granting the variance will not create significant adverse effects to the 

appearance, function or safety of the use or uses on the subject property; and  

(2) Granting the variances will not impose limitations on other properties in the 

area, including uses which would be allowed on vacant or underdeveloped sites.  

 

Findings: The granting of the variance will not affect the public health, safety, and welfare, or 
the comfort and convenience of owners in the vicinity of the proposed development.  The lot will 
be developed in compliance with Code.  The proposed triplex is only one story in height.  
Allowing the variance will not increase the density or the height of the proposed triplex.  The 
narrowness of the property could not be developed with a duplex or triplex on site.  The variance 

Item #5a

Page 15 of 50



Mt. Angel:  Site Design Review /Variance–555 N. Main Street, Tri-Plex 
  5 

allows the site to be developed.  All permitted residential uses in the RC zone require the 20-foot 
side setbacks, which is an extreme setback for such a narrow lot.   
 
B.  Section 14: Infill Overlay District 

Section 14.6 and Section 14.7 are applicable to this development because the subject property is 
in the Infill Overlay Zone and these sections are applicable to Residential Development (Section 
14.6 Residential Development Standards and 14.7 Additional Multifamily Residential 
Development Standards.)  
 
Findings: Section 14.6 (b)-(m) have been reviewed for this development and the proposal meets 
these standards.  Section 14.7 (a)(i) have been reviewed and the proposal meets these standards. 
 

C. Section 15 Bavarian Theme District 

 

The applicant has designed the triplex to meet the design standards of the Bavarian Theme 
District.  Building elevations have been provided to show how the design has been met.  
 
Varied materials and textures are being used on the building facade.  The applicant has provided 
building elevations to show how this is being complied with.  The materials used on the front, 
rear, and side of the building are the same.  Shutters, window grids, roof overhangs, 
compatibility in materials, rain gutters, along with other materials and features have been 
incorporated into the triplex design to comply with the Bavarian Theme in this area.  See 
attached building elevations. 
 
D.  Section 17: Site Design Review 

 

Section 17.5 Residential Development 
 

(1) The site design shall be consistent with the dimensional standards and all other standards 
provided with the applicable zone. 
 
Findings: The site is in compliance with all standards, except the minimum setback of 20 
feet on the south property line.  Applicant has requested Variance to reduce setback from 
20 feet to 5 feet. 
 

(2) Landscaping shall be provided on a least 15 percent of the total lot area. 
 
Findings: The total landscape area on the entire site is 34 percent of the total lot area. 
 

(3) For new developments, electrical , telephone and other utility service shall be located 
underground 
 
Findings: All utilities will be located underground.  This requirement will be met. 
 

(4) The site design shall comply with all other applicable requirements of the Mount Angel 
Development Code and the Public Words Design Standards. 
 

Item #5a

Page 16 of 50



Mt. Angel:  Site Design Review /Variance–555 N. Main Street, Tri-Plex 
  6 

Findings: The proposal has been reviewed for all applicable development standards.  It 
meets all standards, except for the reduced side yard setback on the southern property 
line. 

 
V. SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The proposed development appears compatible with the existing development within the area.  
The proposed development meets setback and landscaping requirements. 
 
The variance request is necessitated by the unique nature of the proposed facility and should 
have no adverse impacts. 
 
Based on the findings above and in the body of this report, staff recommends approval of Site 
Design Review and Variance subject to the following conditions of approval: 
 
A. All signs shall comply with the requirements of Development Regulations Section 11. 
 
B. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant will need to provide evidence of an 

access permit from ODOT. 
 
C. Prior to final occupancy, the applicant shall install landscaping according to the City 

approved plan. 
 
D. Prior to final occupancy, the subject development shall comply with all requirements of 

the City Engineer, in the comments dated April 11, 2016 and included as Exhibit C of the 
staff report dated April 14, 2016. 

 
E. Electric, telephone, and other utility service shall be located underground. 
 
F. The site design review permit shall lapse and become void unless substantial 

improvements related to such use are commenced within one (1) year of the date that the 
approval is granted.  The applicant may request an extension of the approval for a period 
not to exceed six months.  Requests for extension of approval shall be submitted, in 
writing, at least 30 days prior to the expiration date of the approval period.  

 
VI. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION  
 
A. Move to approve Site Design Review /Variance: 
 
 1. As presented in the staff report, including the findings of fact, or  

2. As stated in the staff report with modifications by the Planning  
Commission.  The motion must include the modifications and any necessary 
changes to the staff responses or findings of fact. 

 
B. Deny Site Design Review Variance (stating how the application meets the required 

standards). 

Item #5a

Page 17 of 50



Mt. Angel:  Site Design Review /Variance–555 N. Main Street, Tri-Plex 
  7 

 
C. Postpone or continue this matter to a time certain, or indefinitely (considering the  

120-day limit on applications). 
 

Item #5a

Page 18 of 50



 
Mt. Angel Tri-Plex #5993   Page 1 January 13, 2016 

Site Design Review and Variance 
 

The following statement addresses the applicable Site Design Review standards in Section 17, 
and the requirements under the Bavarian Theme District Section 15, the Infill Development 
Overlay Zone Section 14, the Residential Commercial Zone Section 6.3, and the Variance 
Criteria under Section 4.  Information provided on the site plans for the Site Design Review 
application further address applicable code requirements. 
 
In 2014, a pre-application conference was held with the applicant and City staff to discuss the 
development of the subject property.   
 
Proposal: The subject property is located at 555 N. Main Street and identified as 
061W03CD/Tax Lot 1700.  The applicant is proposing to develop the site with a triplex as 
shown on the site plans.  
 
The subject property is zoned RC and located within the Infill Development Overlay and the 
Bavarian Theme District.   
 

Residential Commercial Zone (RC) 
 
Use:  The applicant is proposing a triplex on the site.  Triplex are a permitted use in the RC 
zone under 6.3(b)(2).  See attached site plan. 
 
Setbacks:  All minimum setbacks to property lines are met as shown on the tentative plan, 
except for the side yard setback along the south property line.  Side setbacks adjacent 
residential zones are required to be 20 feet.  The applicant is proposing a 5-foot side yard 
setback along the south property line.  Therefore, a variance to this setback has been 
requested as part of this application.  Setbacks are shown on the tentative plan. 
 

North:  20-foot setback (RC zoned/existing single family dwelling and existing 
apartments) 

 East:   10-foot setback (RC zoned/existing cemetery) 
 South:  5-foot setbacks (RC zoned/existing single family dwelling) 

West:  Along Main Street, 20-foot setback (RC zoned/existing single family 
dwellings and existing apartments)  

 
Maximum Height:  Maximum building height (measured to the average height of the gable) 
allowed in the RC zone is 20’.  The proposed buildings will be 28’ measured to the highest 
point of the roof and 18’ measured to the average height of the gable.  Therefore, the building 
is in compliance with the building height requirements.  
 

Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 19 of 50



 
Mt. Angel Tri-Plex #5993   Page 2 January 13, 2016 

Infill Development Overlay- Section 14 
 
Residential Development Standards-Section 14.6 
 
14.6(b) Building Orientation:  The main entrance for the first unit is facing the street.  The 
side of the building facing the street will be designed to be consistent with the rest of the 
building; windows, offsets, and architectural features will be incorporated in the portion of the 
building facing the street.  The portion of the building facing the street will be designed to be 
visually appealing.  The other two units face the accessway. 
 
14.6(c) Garage Location: The applicant is proposing a triplex on the site.  All three units will 
have an attached garage for parking.  The garages are located between the units, not between 
the units and the right-of-way.  Therefore, the parking areas are in compliance with this 
requirement.  See attached site plan.   
 
14.6(d) Front Porches:  The primary entrances for each individual unit is provided through a 
covered entry way.  All building entries are clearly defined and easily accessible.  The design 
of the building with the use of roofline offsets and covered entry ways, promote a positive 
sense of neighborhood. 
 
14.6(e) Windows:  All windows will be oriented vertically as shown on the building elevations.  
 
14.6(f) Trim and Details:  In order to be consistent; windows, offsets, and architectural 
features such as trim will be incorporated into the building.   
 
Varied materials and textures are being used on the building facade.  The applicant has 
provided building elevations to show how this is being complied with.  The materials used on 
the front, rear, and side of the building are the same.   
 
14.6(g) Roofs:  The roof will be designed with a 4/12 pitch as shown on the plans. 
 
14.6(h) Parking Location:  The applicant is proposing a triplex on the site.  All three units will 
have an attached garage for parking.  The garages are located between the units, not between 
the units and the right-of-way.  Therefore, the parking areas are in compliance with this 
requirement.  See attached site plan. 
 
14.6(i) Yards: The front yard is visually open to the street as shown on the site plans.  There is 
no fence proposed along the street side of the site (west side). 
 
14.6(j) Fences/Walls:  There are no fences proposed along the street side of the site.  As of 
now, the applicant has not indicated whether a fence will be provided along the side and rear 
yards.  If a fence is proposed on the site, the applicant will apply with the height requirements 

Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 20 of 50



 
Mt. Angel Tri-Plex #5993   Page 3 January 13, 2016 

of the code.  
 
14.6(k) Development Pattern:  The proposal is for a triplex.  Therefore, this requirement is 
not applicable.  
 
14.6(l) Front Yard Setback:  As shown on the site plan, a 20-foot front yard setback has been 
provided. 
 
14.6(m) Dwelling Height:  Maximum building height allowed in the RC zone and the Infill 
Development Overlay is 20’.  The proposed triplex is one-story in height.  The proposed 
buildings will be 28’ measured to the highest point of the roof and 18’ measured to the average 
height of the gable. 
 
Multiple Family Development Standards- Section 14.7 

 
14.7(b) Scale and 14.7(c):  These standards are intended to promote building and site design 
that contributes positively to a sense of neighborhood and to the overall streetscape by 
carefully relating building mass, entries and yards to public streets. 
 
The building on the site is over 80 feet in length. The building design does not have long flat 
walls or roof lines.  The buildings will have an offset that breaks up the roof lines.  The height 
and length of the building conforms to the measuring requirements in code.  
 
The portion of the building facing the street will be designed to be visually appealing, by 
providing similar design as is being provided for the front building facade.   In order to be 
consistent with the front facade of the building; windows, offsets, and architectural features 
will be incorporated in the portion of the building facing the street.   
 
Varied materials and textures are being used on the building facade.  The applicant has 
provided building elevations to show how this is being complied with.  The materials used on 
the front, rear, and side of the building are the same.  See attached building elevations.  
 
The primary entrances for each individual unit is provided through a covered entry way.  All 
building entries are clearly defined and easily accessible.  The design of the building with the 
use of roofline offsets and covered entry ways, promote a positive sense of neighborhood. 
 
14.7(d) Main Entrance:  The main entrance for the first unit is facing the street.  The side of 
the building facing the street will be designed to be consistent with the rest of the building; 
windows, offsets, and architectural features will be incorporated in the portion of the building 
facing the street.  The portion of the building facing the street will be designed to be visually 
appealing.   
 

Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 21 of 50



 
Mt. Angel Tri-Plex #5993   Page 4 January 13, 2016 

14.7(e) Unit Definition:  All units, street facing and interior facing, will have roof dormer that 
emphasizes the entry way and roof lines.  
 
14.7(f) Roof Lines:  The building design does not have long flat walls or roof lines.  The 
buildings will have an offset that breaks up the roof lines.  The height and length of the 
building conforms to the measuring requirements in code.  See building elevations. 
 
14.7(g) Parking:  The applicant is proposing a triplex on the site.  All three units will have an 
attached garage for parking.  The garages are located between the units, not between the 
units and the right-of-way.  Therefore, the parking areas are in compliance with this 
requirement.  See attached site plan.   
 
14.7(h) Parking Lot Landscaping:  In order to take into consideration circulation, landscaping, 
and the requirements of the code, the site has been carefully designed.  The site is landscaped 
as required. The 5-foot setback areas along the north and south property lines will be 
landscaped as required by code.  See landscape plans. The landscaped areas provide for 
visually appealing apartment grounds.   
 
Therefore, the parking landscape standards have been met.  See attached site plans.  
 
14.7(i) Screening:  All equipment will be screened as required by code.  
 

Bavarian Theme District-Section 15 
 

The applicant has designed the triplex to meet the design standards of the Bavarian Theme 
District.  Building elevations have been provided to show how the design has been met.  
 
Varied materials and textures are being used on the building facade.  The applicant has 
provided building elevations to show how this is being complied with.  The materials used on 
the front, rear, and side of the building are the same.  Shutters, window grids, roof overhangs, 
compatibility in materials, rain gutters, along with other materials and features have been 
incorporated into the triplex design to comply with the Bavarian Theme in this area.  See 
attached building elevations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 22 of 50



 
Mt. Angel Tri-Plex #5993   Page 5 January 13, 2016 

Variance-Section 4.5 
 

Criteria: 

(a) The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the 
hardship.  
 

Findings: The variance is for the minimum necessary. The variance is necessary in order to 
develop the site to its full potential.  This is the minimum variance practical and necessary to 
develop this property as a triplex and satisfy the Code.  The size of the lot will still allow for 
adequate setbacks along the north, east, and west property lines.  The applicant’s request is 
to allow a 5-foot setback along the south property line where 20 feet is required.  The 
applicant has explored other options for development of the site.  However, none are feasible 
or allow the site to be fully developed with permitted uses.   

(b) Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property 
which do not apply generally to other properties in the same zone or vicinity; and 
result from lot size or shape, legally existing prior to the date of this Ordinance, 
topography, or other circumstances that substantially exist. 

 
The lot is odd in shape (long and narrow), making it difficult to locate any structure on the site  
and meet the setback requirements.  The applicant is requesting a variance to allow a  
5-foot setback along the south property line where 20 feet is required, as shown on the  
attached site plan.   
 

Due to the shape of the lot and the location of the driveway, the triplex cannot comply with 
code.  Therefore, a variance to the 20-foot side yard setback has been identified as needed.   

(c) The authorization of such variance will not be materially detrimental to the public 
welfare or injurious to property in the vicinity or district in which the property is 
located, or otherwise conflict with the objectives of any City plan or policy.  
 

The applicant cannot identify any adverse effects that will be created by the granting of the 
variance. In fact, the applicant is providing more than adequate setbacks on the site.  The 
setbacks along the north and west portion of the site meet or exceed the setback requirements.  
Therefore, helping to provide adequate buffers for the residents and adjacent property owners.  

 

The applicant has reviewed alternatives, but alternatives are not feasible.  The applicant  
would have to reduce the development down to a single family dwelling in order to meet this  
requirement. Single family dwellings require the same setbacks, therefore, with the narrow lot,  
would still require a variance to the setback requirements.  Therefore, this is not an option.  
So in order to develop the site as permitted under code, the site has to be developed as a  
duplex or triplex.  Both require a variance to the setback as requested.    

Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 23 of 50



 
Mt. Angel Tri-Plex #5993   Page 6 January 13, 2016 

(d) Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 
property right of the petitioner that is possessed by the owners of other properties 
in the same vicinity or zone.  
 

The granting of the variance is needed for proper development of the site. As stated  
above, due to the shape of the lot the required 20-foot setback cannot be met. Therefore, a  
variance to the setback has been identified as needed.   

(e) Approval of the application does not conflict with policies and objectives of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 

The Mt. Angel Development Code, implements the Comprehensive Plan land use goals, and 
governs development of property within the city limits.  The development will be reviewed for 
compliance with city standards and requirements contained in the Code.  The proposed triplex 
meets all applicable provisions of the Development Code.  The applicant is requesting variance 
to the 20-foot side yard setback along the south property line.  See attached site plan.   
 
The lot can be adequately served with water, sanitary sewer and storm drainage facilities. The 
triplex can also be served with other utilities appropriate to the nature of the development. 
Additional reviews occur at the time of building permits to assure compliance with the 
development code.   
 
The subject property is designated Commercial on the Comprehensive Plan which is consistent 
with the zone designated of the property, RC (Residential Commercial Zone).  The purpose of 
the RC zone and Comp. Plan designation is to encourage higher density residential and 
commercial uses on the site.  The applicant’s proposal is for triplex development.  This higher 
density is consistent with the housing needs and density within the Comp. Plan designation and 
the purpose of the zoning density of the RC zone.  

(f) The circumstances or conditions applicable to the specific property involved or to 
the intended use or development of the specific property does not require the 
property to be rezoned.  
 

The proposed tri-plex is a permitted use in the RC zone under Section 6.3(b)(2).  The setbacks 
imposed on this site can be relieved through the variance process. Therefore, the requested 
variance does not require the property to be rezoned. 
 

(g) That the special conditions and circumstances on which the application is based do 
not result from the negligent or knowing violation of this Ordinance by the applicant.  

 
The granting of variance will not affect the public health, safety, and welfare, or the comfort 
and convenience of owners in the vicinity of the proposed development.  The proposed triplex 
is one-story in height, which is similar or lower in height then adjacent structures.  As stated 

Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 24 of 50



 
Mt. Angel Tri-Plex #5993   Page 7 January 13, 2016 

above, the triplex will be developed as required by code. Therefore, the requested variance will 
not be in violation of this or any Ordinance.   

(h) Strict adherence to the requirement or standard is unnecessary because the 
proposed variance will reasonably satisfy both of the following objectives:  

(1) Granting the variance will not create significant adverse effects to the 
appearance, function or safety of the use or uses on the subject property; and  

(2) Granting the variances will not impose limitations on other properties in the 
area, including uses which would be allowed on vacant or underdeveloped 
sites.  

 
The granting of the variance will not affect the public health, safety, and welfare, or the comfort 
and convenience of owners in the vicinity of the proposed development.  The lot will be 
developed in compliance with Code.  The proposed triplex is only one story in height.  
Allowing the variance will not increase the density or the height of the proposed triplex.  The 
property as is could not be developed with a duplex or triplex on site.  The variance allows the 
site to be developed.  Without the variance the lot cannot be developed with the permitted 
uses allowed in the RC zone.  All permitted residential uses in the RC zone require the 20-foot 
side setbacks, which is an extreme setback for such a narrow lot.   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 25 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 26 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 27 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 28 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 29 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 30 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 31 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 32 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 33 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 34 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 35 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 36 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 37 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 38 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 39 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 40 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 41 of 50



Exhibit A Item #5a

Page 42 of 50



Exhibit B Item #5a

Page 43 of 50



Exhibit C Item #5a

Page 44 of 50



Exhibit C Item #5a

Page 45 of 50



Exhibit C Item #5a

Page 46 of 50



Exhibit D Item #5a

Page 47 of 50



Exhibit D Item #5a

Page 48 of 50



Exhibit D Item #5a

Page 49 of 50



Exhibit D Item #5a

Page 50 of 50




